
MINUTES 

MEETING OF THE RICHMOND BOARD OF SELECTBOARD 

TOWN OFFICE CONFERENCE ROOM 

6:00P.M. SELECTMEN MEETING WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2014 

 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

 

Present: David Thompson, Gary Poulin, Clarence Cummins, David Thompson and Rose Beckwith. 

Others: Bette Horning, Patricia Hanrahan, Jill Stinson, Jan Wanggard, Paul Adams, Sean Pierce, 

Chuck Kincer, Nicole Briand, Amy Vashon, Gabe Gould, Scott MacMaster, Ryan Shea, Kate 

Schleh, Elise Faris, Dana Sullivan and Peter Gardiner.  Executive Assistant, Laurisa Loon and 

Town Manager, Janet Smith.  

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3.0 REQUEST TO APPROVE BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

Selectman Cummins made motion to approve the minutes, Selectman Thompson seconded and 

called for discussion to amend 6.4 to add the line…a higher sticker fee along with paying the 

prices for disposing of bulky waste…and 10.1 correct the spelling of Thompson by adding the 

letter P, there being no more discussion, motion passed as amended (4-0-1). Selectman Poulin 

abstained from vote absent from the September 3, 2014 meeting.   

4.0 APPOINTMENTS, RESIGNATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 

 4.1 Resignation of Adam Garland from the Richmond Police Department.  

September 29th is Adam Garlands last day.  Selectman Thompson made a motion to accept 

Adam Garlands resignation up receipt of a written notice, Selectman Beckwith seconded, 

motion passed (5-0). 

 4.2 RYRA Board Appointments 

This item was tabled at the last meeting, questions have been answered and the board is 

ready to take action. Selectman Cummins asked how many do we plan to appoint. 

Ryan Shea responded 4 appointments. Selectman Cummins stated that the by-laws 

mentioned a 9 member board. The Town Manager responded that the email containing the 

by-laws was drafted from a citizen for the board.  The group has not taken up any of those 

issues.  They have four officers and 3 additional voting members.   Selectman Warner stated 

that he wanted to know who had financial exposure.  Ryan Shea responded the president, 

vice-president, treasurer and administrator. The Town Manager stated that the RYRA board 

will be coming back to the board with any voted amendments to their by-laws. 

Selectman Thompson made a motion to appoint Ryan Shea, President; Gable Gould, Vice-

President; Mark Taylor, Treasurer and Elise Farris as a Voting member, Selectman Cummins 

seconded, motion passed (5-0). 

 4.3 Appointment of Linda Doran to the Richmond Planning Board-Item tabled.  



5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS, PRESENTATION 

6.0 ADMIBNISTRATIVE ITEMS-UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 6.1 Library Update-Installation of patio and flowers 

A memorandum was provided by Victoria Boundy referencing the completion of the patio 

behind the Public Library.  Selectman Beckwith stated that herself along with Tymbre Dore 

would be doing some flower planting on October 1st.  Selectman Cummins stated that there 

has been an increase in patrons since the library opened.  The Town Manager stated that 

Victoria is looking for input for a bench to place on the patio there is grant money available 

for the purchase.  Selectman Thompson stated he had a couple options he wanted to 

suggest and will get back to Victoria with the details.  

 6.2 Town of Pittston-Update 

Pittston has signed the Agreement for the trial period.  The holding area will be monitored 

closely.  They are paying $1,250 upfront, stickers are available for the them to purchase.  

 6.3 Senior Center Discussion 

Selectman Cummins is concerned that we are hiring a person to fill this position as it 

currently is structured if we change it how would we handle the changes of those job 

expectations. The Town Manager replied with any job those expectations can change with 

town meeting and budget cuts. Selectman Warner wants to stay the course at this point.  

The Town Manager will continue with the process to fill the position and update the board.   

 6.4 Northeast Ambulance Update 

Chief MacMaster stated that he spoke with Matt Roberge yesterday nobody has mentioned 

any concerns with Northeast Ambulance.   I received one call and they thought it would be 

in the best interest of the town to go out for a RFP.  Selectman Thompson asked if we have 

response numbers. Chief MacMaster replied they are tabulated quarterly.  I can get those 

for the next meeting for you.  Selectman Cummins asked what was decided on garaging the 

vehicle. Chief MacMaster replied it is still a problem there is no conclusion at this point they 

are currently parked at the Central Fire Station.   Selectman Warner stated that we need an 

answer ASAP. Chief MacMaster stated that at our last Department Head meeting we talked 

about moving equipment around and maybe Northeast Ambulance putting on an addition.  

Selectman Thompson asked if the Lincoln Street Fire Station is an option. Chief MacMaster 

stated that the heat at the station is currently at 45 degrees, it’s not a station that holds 

primary equipment there would be an increase in cost that was not appropriated in the 

budget.  Selectman Thompson asked if there is any historical data when it was maintained at 

a decent temperature. Paul Adams stated that it has been at least 7 years since it was 

heated.  Sean Pierce asked if they lease the space if not why are we going to spend money 

to house their ambulance.  Selectman Thompson replied so we can provide ambulance 

service to the residents.  

 6.5 Sale of Town Truck-Tabled.  



 6.6 Naomi and Richard York Subordination Request-Update 

Selectman Thompson made a motion to approve the subordination request, Selectman 

Beckwith seconded, motion passed (5-0).  

 6.7 Harbormaster Payment to Main Street Fuel-Update 

The Town Manager stated the payment for the Harbormaster fuel had gotten pulled from 

the warrant.  Since then questions were answered that the board was looking for. 

Selectman Warner stated there was no money for fuel in this year’s budget.  The 

Harbormaster job description stated that the town would take care of the fees.   

Selectman Thompson made a motion to approve the payment, Selectman Cummins 

seconded, motion passed (5-0).  

 6.8 Cotton Cemetery Invoice Update 

The Town Manager stated the board moved to take funds from the cemetery trust funds to 

cover the repair of the fence, the town funds can cover $7,630 with a balance owed of $541. 

Based on what I read in the minutes the cemetery could provide some additional funds. 

Peter Gardiner stated the committee can finish the payment.  

7.0 ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS-NEW BUSINESS 

 7.1 Cotton Cemetery Request 

Dana Sullivan stated that in order to put up a crematorium the cemetery needs to have 20 

acres.  The Town has land that abuts the cemetery we are looking to have it trusted to the 

cemetery it would give us the amount of acres we need to start working there.  Chuck Kincer 

stated they would need 5.3 acres. The money earned from a crematorium would go to the 

cemetery.  Selectman Warner asked what is your time frame. Chuck replied he has permits 

from CMP, once this is approved he is ready to move forward with Planning Board. 

Selectman Warner stated that we are looking at a town meeting vote unless we have a 

special town meeting.  The State will not allow a crematory on a cemetery smaller than 20 

acres.  Selectman Warner asked if we can have a vote at the November election.  The Town 

Manager will check with MMA legal and get a timeline.  Selectman Warner added that 

holding a special town meeting would cost money is that something the cemetery could pay 

for. Peter Gardiner replied that they could. Selectman Cummins asked if anyone has a 

description on that piece of property is that something the association will bring forward to 

the board. The Town Manager will research and bring back time frames to the board on 

October 1st.  

 7.2 Old Goat Liquor License Renewal  

Selectman Thompson made a motion to approve the license, Selectman Beckwith seconded; 

discussion, the police department has no concerns, motion passed (5-0).  

 7.3 Outdoor Classroom Discussion-Rose Beckwith 



Selectman Beckwith stated that the art teacher wanted to build an outdoor classroom.  It’s a 

great opportunity to be outside, there would be no town personnel maintaining the 

property.  She would like permission to clean up the dead wood and put up some benches.  

Money has been secured from a grant to help with the purchases.  Selectman Warner asked 

if there would be any permanent structures.  Selectman Beckwith replied there would not 

be.  Selectman Cummins made a motion to approve the use of the town property, 

Selectman Thompson seconded, motion passed (5-0).  

8.0 ASSESSOR ITEMS-BUSINESS 

 8.1 Tax Rate Calculation 

The board was provided with three mil rate calculation sheets ranging from 19.20 to 19.30 

to 19.40.  Selectman Cummins asked how much did we spend in abatements last year and 

over the last few years.   The Town Manager replied around $4,500 we have not looked at 

the overall numbers for consecutive years.  Selectman Thompson asked what is the 19.40 

overlay.  The Town Manager replied it would be 1.3%. Selectman Warner stated that 

without historical information my recommendation would be 19.30, the concensus of the 

board agreed.  Selectman Cummins made a motion to set the mil rate at 19.30, Selectman 

Poulin seconded, motion passed, (5-0). 

9.0 MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS-ORAL & WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

 9.1 Public 

Resident Amy Vashon stated that at the July RYRA meeting several positions were vacant, 

they were told they would have a vote in August.  They had already come to the selectmen 

to have positions appointed on September 3.  I know a lot of people interested in serving 

and the information is not being put out there.  The Town Manager stated that she has 

spoken with the President the by-laws are being revamped, we will start putting the agenda 

and minutes on the towns website as a town department, so there meetings will be noticed 

like other town boards we are trying to disseminate the information as best we can, 

unfortunately it’s not a process that happens overnight.  If you want to be on a town board 

there is a form you fill out there is discussion of adding RYRA to that form, again by laws 

need to be worked on.  No other town board has the ability to appoint their own members. 

Amy Vashon stated that the appointments were made without conversation or discussion. 

Bill Terry, former President, stated that with his experience of 2 ½ years working with Ryan, 

he would have recommended Ryan.  The people on the board are the people that come day 

in and day out, the people in those positions are the people that are making things happen, 

we struggle every year with consistency.  Selectman Cummins asked will there be  public 

discussion on those by laws before approved. Amy Vashon stated that she is not saying they 

are not qualified but there were opportunities for others to be on the board, why is it so 

closed circuit.    

Matt Roberge updated the board on Engine 2.  Under the paint and metal there is further 

rust damage there are no barriers between metals its corroding.  The revised figure is 

$28,145 an increase of $5,930 we had approved $22,240 at town meeting along with a 



capital roll over of $4,372 for a total of $26,612 we are $1,533 short.  I have $2,875 in the 

salary line if we don’t fill the Deputy Chief position.  There is also room in the maintenance 

budget.  Between the two lines I have $4,500.  Selectman Cummins stated that the transfers 

from salary and maintenance cannot exceed 10% of the line.  Selectman Warner asked 

about using TIF funds.  The Town Manager replied that the truck that received funds from 

the TIF works in the downtown district, a fire truck does not necessarily stay in the 

downtown.  

Selectman Cummins made a motion to authorize the Fire Department to go with option 1, 

Selectman Thompson seconded, motion passed (5-0).  

Matt Roberge stated that he hopes the money for the computers does not come out of the 

library budget it should come from where the manager planned it to come from.  

Paul Adams stated he is frustrated with the mil rate going from 13.10 to 18.10 to 19.30. I 

know there is nothing the board can do in regards to the school increase but people are on 

fixed incomes and can’t afford it.  Selectman Warner replied he believes the board worked 

hard at trying to save money, we did not hire an interim manager.  The RSU vote was passed 

5-3. The taxpayers approved the school budget.  

 9.2 Town Manager 

Selectman Thompson made a motion to recommit the taxes to Janet Smith as Tax Collector, 

Selectman Poulin seconded, motion passed (5-0). 

Selectman Beckwith made a motion to appoint Janet Smith as Town Manager, Tax Collector, 

Treasurer, Road Commissioner and General Assistance Administrator, Selectman Thompson 

seconded, motion passed (5-0).  

The Manager stated the 2014 MMA Convention is October 1 if any board member wants to 

attend. 

There was a reduction in the Firefighter Blanket Accident insurance bill from $40 to $34 per 

firefighter.  

The Manager met with the auditor and reviewed the draft audit report. The final report will 

be available in a few weeks and she will be meeting with the budget committee October 7.  

 9.3 Selectmen 

Selectman Beckwith stated that the construction traffic is unbelievable with the bridge work 

going on, after speaking with neighbors is there anything we can do about Jake braking.   

10.0 WARRANT 

 10.1 Request for action regarding all disbursement warrants.  

Selectman Beckwith made a motion to disburse the warrant after removing the Highland  

bill for $960, Selectman Thompson seconded, motion passed (5-0).  



Selectman Cummins made a motion to adjourn  at 8:06p.m., Selectman Thompson 

seconded, motion passed (5-0). 


